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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary
(“the Group”). The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB539,134,000, representing a
decrease of 10% as compared with RMB601,715,000 for the previous
year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
decreased to RMB117,638,000 from RMB132,785,000 last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, basic earnings per share
decreased to RMB21.00 cents from RMB23.70 cents last year.

The achievements in 2015 were the results of joint effort of our staff
at all levels. In fact, the Board of Directors has already expressed its
view for 2015’s profitability in the 2014 annual report. As the state
speeded up the reform of the health care system and increased the
anti-corruption effort to increase pharmaceutical distribution, we
overcame the unfavorable factors relating to increased production
cost, lowering drug prices, limited prescription of medicines and rising
material costs, and achieved the targets set out in the beginning
of the year. As such, the Board would like to share its view on the
Company’s competitive edges with shareholders since these edges
would allow the Company to achieve further success in the coming
years.

Firstly, basing on the sales growth of one single product, namely, the
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (8EEEZB %) as our target; we exerted
effort in increasing the sales of mainline products, strengthened
academic promotion and speeded up the development of unexplored
new markets and while ensuring clinical sales, we increased the sales
of Compound Huonaoshu capsule ({87 &4 & B ). Meanwhile, we
continued to make efforts in the production and marketing of injecting
drugs, including Edaravone injection (fkZEH 2T 57/R) to further
improve our sales.

On the other hand, the research and development center of the
Company worked with a number of pharmaceutical universities,
research institutes and a number of experts in the field of drug
research and development and scholars to develop technologically
advanced new drugs, with special efficacy and a broad market
prospect.
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Moreover, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version Good Manufacturing Practice and strengthened production
management. The solid dosage capsule production workshop Two,
Membrane workshop, Pre-delivery processing workshop One have
obtained the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice Certificate
in the year.

Lastly, the Company passed the certification of “national high-tech
enterprise” on 17 September 2015. This year, Compound Huonaoshu
capsule (877 /&I #F 2 %) was named “Branded Products”. The
Company’s trademark Qing Tong Pai (/53&k#) was awarded well-
known trademark of the city.

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance
with internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim,
the Group has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened
internal training and sought professional advice from experts so as to
safeguard interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as
a whole.

Looking ahead, we will demonstrate our capability and persistence
in adhering to our business philosophy, that is, “focusing on
technological innovation and serving the public and endeavouring in
the pursuit of health for people around the world”, with the ultimate
goal to achieve rapid growth and create a brighter future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2015 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2016
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
revenue decreased to RMB539,184,000 from approximately
RMB601,715,000 while the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to RMB117,638,000 from
RMB132,785,000. For the year ended 31 December 2015, basic
earnings per share decreased to RMB21.00 cents from RMB23.70
cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 & =B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

i

2.

10.

=l

12.

Tablets — valid until 28 January 2021

Capsules — valid until 28 January 2021
Bulk Drug (Gardema Extract) — valid until 28 January 2021
Membrane (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &

Extraction) — valid until 28 January 2021

Pills (Condensate) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &
Extraction) — valid until 12 February 2020

Bulk Drug (Fucoidan) — valid until 12 February 2020

Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 29 December
2018

Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 29 December 2018
Small Volume Parenteral Solutions — valid until 29 December
2018

Sterile Bulk Drug (Cefpiramide, Cefmenoxime Hydrachloride,
Cefepime Hydrachloride), Bulk Drug (Edaravone) — valid until 17

October 2018

Solution (External Use) — valid until 20 June 2018

Granules and Pills (Water Pills) — valid until 26 September 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group
and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year
of 2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the first largest contributor
of revenue and its revenue reached our target level.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

In 2014, the Group invested in altering the production line for
fucoidan, with an invested amount of RMB10,000,000.The alteration
was completed and the operation was commenced in 2015 and this
helped to fulfill the demand of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (BE B =R
), the dominant product of the Group.

In 2015, RMB5,000,000 was invested to build and enhance the
craftsmanship. RMB2,000,000 was invested to build Membrane
Workshop and the official commencement of operation in 2016 is
expected. The solid dosage capsule production workshop Two,
Membrane workshop, Pre-delivery processing workshop One have
obtained the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice Certificate
in 2015.

In 2015, the property, plant and equipment of the Group was
increased by RMB7,072,000 and the construction in progress was
approximately RMB8,055,000. We believe the production capacity of
the Group will be further enhanced.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s recorded
a revenue amounted to approximately RMB539,134,000 (2014:
RMB601,715,000), a drop of approximately 10% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB117,638,000, representing a decrease of 11% as compared with
RMB132,785,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings per share
amounted to RMB21.00 cents (2014: RMB23.70 cents), representing
a decrease of RMB2.70 cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in
2015. It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to
the following reasons:

Firstly, we emphasized on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products,
reaching our sales target.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Secondly, the solid dosage capsule production workshop Two,
Membrane workshop, and Pre-delivery processing workshop One
have obtained the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice
Certificate in 2015, bolstered the growth and development of the
Group.

Thirdly, we continued to strengthen academic promotion and
develop the unexplored new markets while proactively organizing and
participating in academic promotion in relation to nephrology at state
level.

Fourthly, we strengthened our efforts on integrating market resources,
encouraging reasonable mobility of personnel, unifying the price
of products supplied and regulating sales practices. Focusing on
enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such as
soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in
order to identify new profit drivers.

Fifthly, we enhanced our efforts to recruit new sales staffs and are
dedicated to train sales teams in order to improve their overall quality
and strengthen their capabilities. We have nurtured the sense of
overall awareness and the sense of responsibilities among every
salesperson in charge of regional markets and provincial sales
managers. Meanwhile, we have also focused on getting our products
covered by local medical insurance and included in the supplemental
catalogue for the new rural cooperative medical system. We also put
in efforts on product tender and filing of product prices. Through our
concerted effort, we accelerated the development of markets and
hence making our market coverage wider.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately 79.9%, representing a 1.0% decrease as compared
with that of 80.9% for the year ended 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB23,913,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB18,309,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Distribution and selling costs dropped to approximately
RMB271,170,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 from
approximately RMB276,949,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 50% of revenue in 2015, which represented a 4%
increase from 46% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB45,534,000 from approximately
RMB67,901,000 last year.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB183,104,000 (2014: RMB130,316,000) with
total borrowings of RMB7,590,000 (2014: RMB8,830,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had total assets of RMB907,994,000
(2014: RMB783,666,000) which were financed by current liabilities of
RMB152,941,000 (2014: RMB151,239,000), long term borrowings
of RMB2,908,000 (2014: RMB7,513,000), deferred tax liabilities
of RMB327,000 (2014: RMB239,000) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB7283,955,000 (2014: RMB606,317,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB183,104,000. As at 31 December 2015, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 20% (2014:
23%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of RMB184,039,000 (2014: RMB177,349,000) by the Group’s total
equity and liabilities of RMB907,994,000 (2014: RMB783,666,000).
The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to
total net assets was 1.1% (2014: 1.5%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 654 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

RENE S K EBTBRR
REBRAFEHEFEBROVBMRR R _F
—£¢+ A=Z+—8B A£E®HNIEE RET
weas A AR%183,104,000 T (= E —mM
¢ )\Eﬂmsomaooom BEREANRE
7,590,000 T (ZZF — U 4F : AR 8,830,000
x) EZ:E#\U\Fﬁ%ﬂ+u‘|‘§ I o R
—E-RAFE+-A=+—H8 AEENEEHL
157%AE%907,994,000%(:%—@¢ N
K #783,666,000L) r &R EATBAE
AR#152,941,000c (T —HF : AR
151,239,0007T) « RHIE 7 A R#2,908,000
T(—Z—m4 : ARM7,513,0007T) - EEH
EEEARKI27,000T(—2—MNE : ARK
239 ooom&ﬂxiﬁé‘ AR723,955,0007T

(ZF—m% : AR¥606,317,0007T) -
EXREELR

R-E—AFE+-_A=+—0 xEEFEFES
KIS SEMARE183,104,000T - R=F
—hRE+-_A=1+—8 - z:&%l:éfﬂ@%ﬁaxm
BEMBEZHERAE20%(ZF—M4E : 23%) °

;z:éﬁttﬂzﬂ%lﬁ@%ﬁ}&ﬁﬁm,osg,ooo
FT(ZZ—pusE : AR¥EA177,349,0007T) B A&
Bz RgaE ARKI07,994,000T( - &
— P4 - AR¥E783,666,00070 ) EEE - A
EENERBBELR(MERABREREEAR
FEEZHERAE)B1IA%B(ZZ—MUF :1.5%) °

=]
NEBHEREREIGSAA » WEMAE THRE
HEAE -

N2 RMIGIRIEARERERNHRR - BF

REgBmmERE - MISTEATRERE BRI
HTRE - EAELMNERZRR MR - &
AR A IR R GBI R X B REETE o

BiR - HEREXSEE

ER—RAMEEENDE  AEBEBDERFR
BERZRE R ERE - RERE EHE A RE

Bk - AKE DB THABEXBAREANERE
PIRSER - BRRERZE - TERBET 3

ERIRE - ARERABQEEMAE ANZELER
ARERBLERT KR - TR SEES - TP - #
EEREMFNESERERTEEY  ERE
Bt -

AEEREEEHFETAE  NamEHERs
ZEMEE  UREEPIRHEEEM IR
AR AT AR -



r
!

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 61, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments
from November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held
the position of deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and
secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and general manager. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990; appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 49, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He
holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant, certified
estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July 1990, he
studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from August 1990 to
May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County;
from June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director
and equipment director and finance officer of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was appointed as
director and chief finance officer of the Company in March 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 51, male, is an executive director and sale director of part
of east China. He holds a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-
charge and senior engineer. From July 1984 to August 1986, he
studied in Shanxi Province Herbal School; from September 1986 to
August 1988, he acted as director of quality inspection department
of herbal medicine company in Huinan County; from September
1988 to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University;
from September 1991 to January 1993, he acted as district manager
of Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; from February 1993 to May
1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University; from June 1996
to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company and commenced to perform his duties of
executive director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007; appointed as
sale director of part of east China since 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Aged 60, male, Mr. Gao is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He
has over 30 years of experience in audit and accounting services. He
is currently serving as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified
Public Accountant (¥Em & E A S5TEIE5ET). Prior to this, he was
a partner of Huinan County Audit Firm (FEE&EHEISEAT). He
worked at the Resources Bureau of Huinan County (¥ &%E B)
from 1974 to 1994.

Ms. Tian Jie

Aged 44, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been
working at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (&M% 183 2B E15FT) since March
1993 and has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is
currently serving as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping

Aged 60, female, is a member of the third branch of the Jiu San
Society. She graduated from Jilin University, with a bachelor’s degree
in chemistry, a master degree in science and a doctorate degree in
science, majoring in biochemistry and molecular biology from the
College of Life Science. She was awarded the title of Professional
Technological Talents with Outstanding Contribution in Jilin Province
(the 10th Batch), Experts with Outstanding Contribution in Changchun
City (the 4th Batch) and Top Creative Talents in Jilin Province (the
3rd Batch). In 2009, she was engaged as a part-time professor and
PHD students of applied chemistry in the College of Chemistry, Jilin
University. She worked in Jilin Engineering Institute for Light Industry
Co., Ltd from 1978 to 1999. She has been a professor in Changchun
University of Technology since 1999.

SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 67, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995. He
has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory committee
of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 46, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School with
associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From 1991 to
2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory of Huinan
County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and has acted as
supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 59, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990. He
worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution office. He
has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since 1996.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 35, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 48, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992 with
a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief pharmacist
and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as dean of
Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has worked as
Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. In 2015, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental
analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 34 to 103.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the'Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes
below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

MBERRE

ATRAEEEAHEEAREERBEBEZR
2 DRETXMEMSELRR - AEETEL

BRI BERER B

Results E
2015 2014
—E-EF — TP
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Revenue WA 539,134 601,715
Profit before income tax 75 BT i A 137,782 159,664
Income tax expense Frg%isz i (20,144) (26,879)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~— AEERERAF AFEG
attributable to owners of the Company =Rl 117,638 132,785
Assets and liabilities EERERE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Total assets BEE 907,994 783,666
Total liabilities BwaE (184,039) (177,349)
Net assets BEFE 723,955 606,317

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE

ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set
out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 and 30
to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 34 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB595,408,000 (2014: RMB477,183,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 20% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2014: 20%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 6% (2014: 5%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 17% (2014: 39%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 4% (2014: 17%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2015 are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie (appointed on 25 June 2015)

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (appointed on 25 June 2015)

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men

Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) were as follows:

ESRESRROMERS

R=_ZF—FRF+-_A=+—0 ' AAFESE "
$&I£ﬁﬂz)\,§ﬁ$/&7&32&17*@%&!
(E&EAFEHSNPEEN(E %&Bﬁfwun%
XVEB) BIR% (5 *HEEJM EHRHEARIEE

N EAE G BIZE 35216 » BT A& ATl & SR Ay
ERE AR HIBEE ?aﬁﬁall%ff}i B5 EmR Al
([BIZER EHAREI)E5.4618E5.67TI5FTIEES
BEREREMAMNS AR 7] &k FTAER &
KRBT ¢

Long positions in shares RBRAHERE

Percentage of

total registered

Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital

Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares (GRS

=21 ERER 54 AEREHE HEARERBE DL WEDL

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
5 54 (PN EmEAA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SREEL fEA EmEAA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REI fELA EmEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the B EXFEBREEN R-ZT—HE+-_HA=+—

Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has E AAREE EERFEITBRAEBENRA

any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EEBARGHER
BEXEEREENROMER | —BRARES
S BREER  BEENIZTBRABREEZEN
BT N\EA T FRMBEERRITETMER
BAXRBIRMHESFMERM S 2 R A
NE - HERARREAAMNE R NERE
MRPE REE  EERIBITHRABARER
HAEEE AZ SRR -

ATAL(ARRESE EERTIEBTHARR
SMRAR BB MBI PR ARRERAR

Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHRR
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of  total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
Ak 48 5 B A
BRREH B REEME RNERHEE HRERBEDLE WEZ L
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

ErERREEGREEAR (ML) BZEEA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have
any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the
Board of Directors.

Long positions in H shares

Wit B AMEAR ARRAERS - WS RRAAREE
ATLMEE AR AOEFEERMEES - OREE
FERHRE «

RHEHNRR

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of  total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

IHAB MR A

REER &4 HEREE HHER B 2L MBS

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 17.11% 5.269%
PR IE EmEAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11% 2.498%

ki BEmEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.
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The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 104 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 23 to 30 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is'committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie (appointed on 25 June 2015)

Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (appointed on 25 June 2015)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven Directors,
four of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold
the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among the members of the Board.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Board meetings
During the year, five regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Esgges
FRBBGEAEAEREDH
BB :

cBREHE

Meetings attended/Held

Directors 2= BHE CETERE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SREAFEAE(FEE) 5/5
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREE N SR 5/5
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang b= pavtasy 5/5
Mr. Wu Guo Wen =B 5/5
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEMITES

Mr. Gao Yong Cai KA S 6//5
Ms. Tian Jie (appointed on 25 June 2015) A&+ (R_ZE—RAF A THREZE) 2/5
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (appointed on 25 June 2015) B FaE(R=E—RAFNA-+HBEEERT) 2/5

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board
of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms.
Qiu Fang Ping are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Ms. Qiu Fang Ping and Mr. Zhang
Hong. The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a
year and the quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

TRERMLEERB/ARNREIERRAEBERT
R&h o WX RAKREZIBRERANENE
HER - EFERR - A AT EEDEN
AEEz&END  ARELEFEARENE
B UHAREEBRARERRE  XHEENNE
MEEREREFSISESSFHARMNAES
SETHE  EUREEFTSHREEEZHNA

R °

BYFYITES

ARREEMBLIEHITE S AL EE TG
BB BEBTR - MRERERS - Bk %
£ BEETREEFLT ABIIFNITES -

BB IFNTESHARBEARRAGSIEAN
AmESER ARG BELIFRTESTEREL
EHNFH=F  NFEHEFREBFSE
B BEREM-SEHES —EASEERMARA
REITARIERILE

EENEREXBRRERE

REFNEZERYSESEE - EXRFIHMH
MERES| - UIHBENEREREEREEREN
BHERAREB LTS - ABBHEBITE
REIZIR_ £ AR A % B BABIRE R FRBE &
5%

AERZEBERIRAESSIEL S RIEEH
RE CBE_E—AFT-_A=+—BLEEFE
N REEHBESHBERRE LS ETENE
MFBAFRE - REIBFENRN - AAGIEREAIZE
RETMRARBBEERTAERIRERTEN
R SRS o

yMEES

RIEFE - ARBAERZEZTHEFNLA=TNA
RIUFMEE S - RAREAH ZBEEIER
BYFRTESS KA KL RMKEREEAR
Tt B RIRIAE - FMEE ST
BERIBIT-REH  BEMRIEEAER
A e



r

i
CORPORAT NCBEPOR‘{
CREA '

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:

HFNEEe AR BREEMANTES
ZEBEFHES RREEMHN S  RRERMEN
R(BREARERRIERSBM AT TENZE
AAE)ARAEFTEHIEATES 2 HEH
2o P EeREBEERARMMATLRA
AXNz#HE BFAREZBRREE  AEE
Ho A 30 75 2 B A6 1 Mo 3% R BRI E % B 2 AT ER
M o

REBEZE-—E—AF+-A=+—HIHBEE
FINF R ESRT TRRSE - SKE 25
I ERERNT

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE BHE BETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai mIKA E 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie A&z

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZE—AF A= THAEZT) 1/2
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping 522+

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZE—AFEAA-THBEZT) 1/2
Mr. Zhang Hong aRBA ST

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (R—E—NFEASA-THAEZE) 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration
policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms. Qiu Fang Ping, Mr. Gao Yong Cai
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:

REBRFERARAZESHIILBAAERA
T YHEFSERIME - REZE SR
BEEEA - BEEXEKE  HARELR  EAAR
S RBEFERE -

TR A=t -BUIMBEE R

BHE—

HLBERTTMAEH - TLRRZEEER
Withw T EFGRE - KEABBAK - BEZR
BENRRATEENBLIFRTEETZIERARE

{ERERR REE - BB 2R hFEmT

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE BHE BETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai mIKA S 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie HEEZ+

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZZE—RAFNAZTHAEZT) 1/2
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping iR e

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (RZZE—RAFANAZTHAEZT) 1/2
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SR ST 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Ms. Tian Jie and Ms.
Qiu Fang Ping. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai. The Board considers that each
Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:

Members RE

EZZE BN OBEFEARBTIREEH - BX
REEERILFEHBOT

Meetings attended/Held
BHE BETER

Mr. Gao Yong Cai mIKA S 4/4
Ms. Tian Jie At

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (R=BE—AF~A-THAEZMT) 2/4
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping iR g

(appointed on 25 June 2015) (R=E—AFA~A=-THAEZME) 2/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2015 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 32 and 33 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2015, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to
the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated
with its business activities and has implemented a practical and
effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and performance by
the Audit Committee and the Board. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is effective.
The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the present internal controls of the Group
are satisfactory. The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and is of the view that the system of
internal control adopted for the year is sound and effective. The Group
does not have an internal audit function and the Board is of the view
that there is currently no need for the Group to have this function.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2016
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.g REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

MRZRIERIS(HE)EEEHMBIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 34 to 103, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number PO1886

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RERERAEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F- a4 -A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAREZT)

2015
=

RMB’000
ARBT R

539,134
(108,352)

430,782

23,913

(271,170)
(45,534)

137,991

(209)

137,782

(20,144)

117,638
117,638
117,638

117,638



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEERER
As at 31 December 2015
RZF—AF+=A=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARKZT)

2015
—E-HEF
RMB’000
AREFT T

5,557
134,986
16,428
74,557
659

232,187

28,764
212,073

84,412
12,500
454
154,500
183,104

675,807

21,857

95,841
1,949
13,416
13,695
4,000
682
1,501

522,866

755,053



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEERER
As at 31 December 2015
RZF—AF+=A=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARKZT)

2015
—E-HEF
RMB’000
AREFT T

2,908

27,863
327

31,098
723,955

56,025
667,930

723,955



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F- a4 -A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAREZT)

56,025 51,098 465,952 606,317

117,638 117,638

117,638 117,638

56,025 51,098 33,242 583,590 723,955




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F- a4 -A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAREZT)

2015
—Z-1%
RMB’000
ARBTR

137,782

(4,867)
(790)

24,720
189
209

4,336
(2,816)
1,860
453
16,233
60

(140)
(3,362)

173,867
535
(6,597)

3,157
316
8,298

(8,707)
(152)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE—F—AF 1+ —A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZTR)
2015 2014
—2-I% T -NF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
{023 ARETR ARET T
Cash generated from operations REEBRELE RS 170,717 68,212
Cash flows from operating activities EERHELCRERE
Cash generated from operations %« **%%é;ZEﬁi 170,717 68,212
Income tax paid ERER (18,895) (18,658)
Interest paid 2FE 8 (209) (120)
Net cash generated from operating activites  RE&EBEL2RLEE 151,613 49,434
Cash flows from investing activities REEKELEZRERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BEEN CRENEE 16 (388) (298)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERZE 17 (1,143) (3,894)
Purchase of construction in progress BEERIRE 19 (8,055) (8,688)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE 21 - (1,190)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEUENENKEE 23 (215,000) (160,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HeEyy  mERREHERE
plant and equipment 100 16,078
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HERTAERGHE - 7,000
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale HE R it HER TS é%ﬁﬁ@c%’&
financial assets 23 90,500 160,000
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables RWETRD /(&) 20,000 (10,000)
Interest received B H 2 6 4,867 3,306
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets A E B A E E R e 6 790 662
Net cash (used in)/generated from RELBK(FTA)/ EERSEHE
investing activities (108,329) 2,976
Cash flows from financing activities MEXRELZBERE
Proceeds from government subsidies ISR R S O] 11,070 7,593
Repayment of loans from government authority BT EE % 30 (1,240) =
Dividend paid ERRE (326) (46)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEERELEZRSTFE 9,504 7,547
Net increase in cash and BeRELEEY
cash equivalents #hEEE 52,788 59,957
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year B ERREEEY 130,316 70,359
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBERBELZEY 183,104 130,316
Analysis of the balance of cash and RERASEENMBERIIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Be MRITHES 183,104 130,316

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  BENT 2 M55 B AR 5 R B EE 2 — 289
statements.
HEMABEREECEERHBR A A 39
T -RFFR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products
in the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA?”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Change in Accounting Estimates of the Useful
Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Starting from 1 January 2015, the Group has changed
its estimated useful lives for its plant and equipment from
10 years to 6 years, as to reflect the physical conditions
of these assets and to align with the requirements of the
GMP. The change has been applied prospectively from 1
January 2015. Accordingly, the adoption of the change in
the estimated useful lives of the plant and equipment has
no effect on prior years. The effects of the above change
are summarised below:

2.

BEAETHBERBE(R)

(b)

(c)

mRERE

iR MG MR B IRE LKAVEE
fifmsl WARFEFEZETE
MEEMAIHHENBEEELE
Al e

RARE 8 B 75 35 2 Al R B B 755
RABRETHERS G ME
BERERAASE S BRRINAE
VT o 0% B AR H B K S ) 3
BREM BB BEBRER XM
HoRaVBHREAMEBEAZEE
KT EE3HREE -

W¥ - BERRECAEHNE
BREREE
BE-ZT—RHF—A— B A&EE
B Mk E NG E R F AR
KIOFE B R ACF » URBILEE
ENEERRIEFTE [BREEZ
2 | RFBGMP)HESK - #FEH =
E-—HE—A—BEREPER
I - AR KRB SR F
HEHREFERETFE - L#
PR EanT

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for BZ-—=2—HRE&+=-—HA=t+—HI RMB’000
the year ended 31 December 2015 FEZHREHEER AR¥ET T
Increase in depreciation expenses of plant MR NI E & R

and equipment 5,578
Decrease in income tax expense P55 & R 836
Decrease in the profit for the year and profit F @ F R AR EHEE A

attributable to owners of the Company FEAE 3= AR A 4,742
Consolidated balance sheet as at R-B-HAF+=-A=+—8=2
31 December 2015 HEEEEER
Decrease in the property, plant and equipment ME - BE REER D 5,678
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities B ES ERD 836
Decrease in retained earnings RE R 4,742

TG B REL(CEERNBERAR]
—T—REFER

41



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(e)

(f)

(continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (continued)

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or revised
HKASs and HKFRSs, amendments and interpretation to
existing HKASs and HKFRSs. Management is currently
assessing the financial impact of these revisions to the
Group’s financial position and performance.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2.

BEAETHBERBE(R)
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Subsidiaries (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statement
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

()

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

(iii) Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

(n) Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables”, “loans receivables” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Financial assets (continued) (n)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

BEAETHBERBE(R)

MBEE (&)
(iii) Rt BB E R E ()

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.

(iv) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on the that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(o) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(p) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)]

(@)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the income statement within “other gains and/
(losses)”. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available for sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(¢) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in
the defined contribution retirement plans managed
by the local government authorities whereby they
are required to contribute to the schemes at fixed
rates of the employees’ salary costs. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members

who may be expected to influence, or be

influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition

(x)

(v)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(z) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(l). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and
estimates.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is made based on assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/written back in the period in which the estimate
has been changed.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

(d) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

4. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other
sales related taxes.
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on type of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical
products in the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis
thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.
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OTHER INCOME H g A
2015 2014
—E-RF —F—-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARET ARET T
Recovery of bad debts previously 1z [B] 2 4 5 12 BR
written off 1,295 115
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 2,087 491
Government subsidies (Note) BT e Bk (B ) 140 1,598
Recognition of deferred income TERIE YA 31 3,362 3,086
Interest income on loans receivables  fEUE K F 2 U8 A 2,780 2,815
Yield gain on available-for-sale AR EMEEE
financial assets 0] 3R e 2= 790 662
Reversal of impairment of inventories 17 & & 2 22 - 1,061
Reversal of provision of trade JE UK & 55 BR TR 4R (o] 43
receivables 24 - 568
Reversal of provision of loans JFE UK B K B A (o]
receivables 26 2,816 =
Others HA 10,643 918
23,913 11,309

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group received
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology
development of the Group.
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Directors’

fees
itk
RMB’000
ARBT T

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
1.1
REMFIR
RMB’000
ARETR

Discretionary
bonus
WA
RMB’000
AR®TR
(Note (i)
(Hi&E0)

Pension
fund
contributions
BRRSHR
RMB’000
ARET T

2015 Total
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RMB’000
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Salaries,
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

()

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three Directors (2014: four Directors) whose remuneration
is set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining two (2014: one, non-director employee) highest
paid, non-director employees whose remuneration were all
below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB838,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and RMB789,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014) are as follows:

14. EERSRITHRAEME (F)

(c)

TEBREHMAL

FREBRFHALBEILES
(ZZE—MF 4%EF) EM
HBRLEX(@#F) - =5 - AEE
Hipoamm o MFESER(=F
—MEABRFEFEE) ZFHA
E581,000,000/8 T (B E_F—H
FH-A=1t—BHLEFERZERA
K ¥838,000c kB E T — &
ToA=+T—BLEFEHEERAR

#789,0007T) + EFHMFBLT ¢
2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE U
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 285 R H Iz 532 186
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 26 =
558 186

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB838,000 (2014: equivalent to
RMB789,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

BREXHE@QOCHEENESHE
SN BNERARE [EERER
EEEMRE|—FNESREMSR
ERABNMEREBEE-_Z—1F
+_A=t+t—BLEFERHE_ZFT
—OE+_A=+—HLEFEHK
71,000,000 7 * HHER AR
838,0007T( —ZE—M4 : HERA
R#789,0007T) °

BHE_Z—RAFEK-_ZT—NHF+=
A=+—BLEE  ASKEHEHR
Z = o B E B X ERMEEA
HMASKRMARERE R 28E -
S VERERL 2 ffE o

TG B REL(CEERNBERAR]
—T—REFER
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
—E-8F
RMB’000
AREFT T

5,058
499

5,557
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2015
=

RMB’000
ARBT R




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. ZEIRE
2015 2014
=2-1fF ki
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
At 1 January w—A—H 66,781 145,834
Additions R 8,055 8,688
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B ZEY % - K FE K&
(Note 17) (BiaE17) (279) (87,741)
At 31 December RN+-=—A=+—H 74,557 66,781
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RIBRATIRE
The Company
AKAFE
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZT—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Unlisted investment, at cost FELHIRE - BANAE 25,500 25,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHTE A RIFkIE 24,660 24,660
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 were as RZZE—RAFE+=_A=+—80 MBAA
follows:— SRR - —
Country of incorporation Percentage of
and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
SRR LR BHERA
SENERR AR
YNCIE=E EEEEM Baotk EEXEK
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong The PRC, limited liability company 100% Trading of
Pharmacy Trading Company biochemical
Limited medicine
EMEBEEREEZRSHEREE B BREEAF] BEEE(b%Em
NE]
Jilin Province Medicinal Plants The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
Trading Company Limited TR E)
EMEMTEREMKEERAR  FE - FREEAQF
EMEREFHERZEGRAF The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
e BREEAF] EEO )
The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current liabilities in ENMBRRREREARNRREEAR
the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured, interest-free and %Z‘},ﬁbﬁ% C REER - RRERRER
repayable on demand. EE -
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

31,881

(3,117)

2015
—E-8F
RMB’000
AR¥T R

30,000
215,000
(90,500)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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2015
—E-fF
RMB’000
ARBET T

244,875
(32,802)

212,073



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR BT RE
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2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

2015
—E-RF
RMB’000
AR¥T R

212,073
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2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

115,434
6,590
10,592
79,457

212,073
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
—E-E8F
RMB’000
AREFT

2015 2015
—E—1F —E-EfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®T T

5,234 12,969
(3,905) (2,964)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.
The movement in the provisions for impairment of advances
to staff and other receivables during the year, including both

==

&

s

specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

HEWRIR - FT & RFENKIE

AR B BB F ARG A E AR e
FANM 8 TR HE MUK IRR E B

(BREFEREEERD)MT

2015 2014

—E-AHF —FT-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT T ARETTT

At 1 January R—H—H 6,680 4,888

Addition provision (Note 9) AN (HT2E9) 189 1,792

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,869 6,680
26. LOANS RECEIVABLES 26. EWER

2015 2014

—E-FHF —F-@mOF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREETIT

Loans receivables due within 1 year R—FREH 2 BIWE R 25,000 50,000

Interest receivable FEUFI 2. 631 2,457

Less: Provision for impairment R B R (13,131) (17,457)

Loans receivables due within 1 year —net R—FRNEH 2 EWE R — F5E 12,500 35,000

(i)

(i

(i)

Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2014:
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party is
secured, bears interest at 7.8% per annum (2014: Nil) and,
following their renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve
months.

Loans of aggregate sum of RMB5,000,000 (2014:
RMB30,000,000) due from independent third parties
are unsecured, bears interest 6.31% per annum (2014:
6.31%-10% per annum) and, following their renewal, will
be repaid within the next twelve months.

Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2014:
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party
is unsecured, interest free (2014: Nil) and, following its
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

() EBURBYE=Z7TNEREBAREK
10,000,000t (=2 —M%E : AR
#10,000,0007T) &F E#HE « HFF
K78EFE(ZE—NF : &) RE
HBERARE T —EARNERE -

iy EBURBIYFEF=Z7THNEREBARE
5,000,00070 (ZE—H4E : ARK
30,000,000 ) & £ K ~ 1% F 7
KEJ1EFE(ZE—HF « FHI=E
6.31F10E ) M BEHEBENRAKR+=
EARNERE -

iy EURBYE=ZFTNERBBAREK
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

2015
—E-RF
RMB’000
AR¥T R

17,457

(2,816)
(1,510)
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2015
—E-8F
RMB’000
AREFT T

4,520
4,396
12,941

21,857




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

2015
=F-0F
RMB’000
ARBTT

2015
1

3.0% per annum

FRE3.0E
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
=
RMB’000
ARBT R

2015
—E-E8F
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

21,444
11,730
(3,362)

29,812
(1,949)

27,863
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
—E-EF
RMB’000
ARETR

2015
—E-If
Number of
shares Amount
R X
RMB’000
ARETR

387,750,000 38,775

172,500,000 17,250

560,250,000 56,025
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2015
—2-1%

RMB’000
AR®T T

257,687

28,695
224,624

83,271
12,500
454
154,500
179,837

683,881

174,697

509,184

766,871




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

31,098
735,773

56,025
679,748

735,773
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B R AR BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

34. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company (continued)

4. ARFNBEERBERRHEEN
28 (&)
(b) AAFREHRE ()

(i) Share premium (i) KRiwE
The Company’s share premium account represents AR ARG & BB LA BB TR
the premium arising from shares issued at a price in HEZEBRETZRNEEZ
excess of their par value per share. B o
(i)  Statutory surplus reserve (i) ZEEZBEHE
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC RIEFBARERAN QT RAA
and the Company’s articles of association, the B AR REFREMBA
Company and its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate AHMBRTFEEEMEERE - A
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after B 10% 0 FEEE 4=
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory EERBEEL,D - EZAK
surplus reserve account. When the balance of EEHNEREZSRAREZ
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’ 50% ' ARAEIA BITIRERD
share capital, any further appropriation is optional. HE— S B ERIE o SRR
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to #Hr] AERm A EEREEK
offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares. BATALIR © AT~ ALPAREETTI2
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be EERBEEARDERRR
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share KHEI25% o
capital after such issuance.
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAEIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments REEH  AEBEITYERIERENE
contracted for but not provided for as follows: AEEMT :
2015 2014
—E-AF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Acquisition of intangible assets Wit &= 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of construction in progress BALRELRE 650 815
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAYZE - BEKR& 221 —
2,621 2,565

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

36. BEALRS
ERNYRLTEERERE Y AHEEAL
THEOEARTESINNE - HMe
BRI REN 14 -

EMEEEREACEEROHERAH

—T—REFER
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2015
—Z-1F
RMB’000
ARBT R

4,000
3,590

7,590
723,955
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAAEBZT)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables and loans
receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade, other and loans receivables. The Group
allows an average credit period of 180 days to its trade
customers. The amounts presented in the balance sheets
are net of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified loss
event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of
a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
loans receivables and cash and bank balances included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

38. MiKEKRERE

BERRTE

AEBMENESEEASZLBHERER -
BEEERR - AHELEAR - FIXE
B EEERK - BRARRAFERR o
REEN G RBITITES R T AEY
HRBEERS o MR - ZERB S
AEBOMEEERERSEMAEE -
NEEREHAEEN RPN EELE -

(a) EERE
AEEZEBUKEERARE S RIE
ITHBRUREWNE SRR - HifE
WRIBAREWRER - X&EB 25
ERBREZREHEKREZER
HEihfEU B A R W E R - ANE
BEREESRFERHZTFHEER
B180H - EEREBEXRAMIIN SR
E IR EWHRIBERREE - tnF T
PBRNEEEEMBEATELER S
BERERWEETERERE - 8
S ET R E R -

R ER B 3 B AT A R BRI A —
F—HESFRHGHFAREANEE
B o AEEE HEBRERRA
BRZEEETENTPELHEE -

eI E ZiRR - EMEWGRIE - &
WER BRERRITEBRNESE
ERERAMINERERSAEE
WARBENVBEEAZENTRSE
EmkE -

(b) HEBEZEE
AEEETESEERATER
BNREERE  BEEHNRERS
BHRNEBEEERARNESRRESE
Ko HEEBRSRETEELE
EREBKFRABARAESEH
e AEENBRAEHERER
BESTFRERENTABERS
MAREEESEHRSHEE - UE
NEEHLREMRBESHER -

TR AKBUBABNEE
WER T & AZIH B S - DIRIERT
HMARTRBASRE (BERBESLOH
Ko RMBFERANE - BERE
B EAENNE)ARKREE R
ARABIFREANRNRR B S -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
—T—REFER
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted

amount cash flow
HEE sz

REE ReRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%TR

153,900 154,451

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—FR%
RER
RMB’000
AR®TR

161,243

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years
—F#ZE
MER
RMB’000
AR®TR

More than
2 years but
less than

5 years
MERE
1ER
RMB’000
AR¥TR

More than
5 years

LE%
RMB’000
ARBTR
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2015
—E-FHF
Effective
interest rate
BRA=
% RMB’000
ART
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. BiBEBEE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B RERER (&)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥mEpE
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of AEEFERFBELEER - K5
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have DRGUAANREEE - SRR
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in WERZEmESNERRR -

foreign currency exchange rates.

(e) Price risk (e) EmEE
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or AEBEHEDHTAREGRER
commodity price risk. K B o

(f) Fair value measurement () 2FETE
The following table presents the carrying value of TREJREFRBPRIZEE BB R
financial instruments measured at fair value at the HEBEIBRAFEAEARER
end of the reporting period across the three levels of FEERFIEZ=EZFHNATE
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair STESRTIEZERmME - AFER
value measurement. The level into which a fair value EMED 2ERT2RO NEER
measurement is classified is determined with reference MARABAREBRZ AIBRREE KA
to the observability and significance of inputs used in the EEMETE

valuation techniques as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only o  F14MHE: EFAE1LBHA
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in B (AR EEBEERM S
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the FHEREESBBEZRECK
measurement date. KRR )TEATE -

. Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2 o  FOM(HE : FIAE2R | AR
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level B (BITNFFE FE 1A B s E
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. AEE - BRI AEZERA
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market BEiRg ABE) = FE -
data are not available. TR BRI A BB ATISEE

RAEZ 8 ABIE -

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using o FEIMEE: MHEETAR
significant unobservable inputs. R ABBGTEATE -

100 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

Carrying

amount

AREE
RMB’000

ARBTR

154,500

154,500

Level 1
E1R
RMB’000
ARMEF T

Fair Value Measurement
APENE
Level 2 Level 3
28k E3
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR¥TR

154,500

- 154,500

Total

st
RMB’000
ARMEF T

154,500

154,500
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)
The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These financial assets are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the financial assets is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial assets
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

° The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

° Other technigues, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial assets.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial
assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

102 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38.

B3 R b B 1 (4R
B35 BB IR ()

(7)

R FEE (&)

EREMSEENERTANRYT
BEREBEEERNTSRETR - &
HEANSMERRIESFR P
R &L EAATL - EER
BEREERIBER  MzFHRE
KERBRAFRGEEETHER
FRTERHE - ZMHHRERE
B AKREFENYHEENTS
BERERBENRE - LFUBKE
EBRESIR -

REEERTSEENS R T A
WIESMTAE T R) A FHENRAGKE
RIEE - (A EMEE T B A&
KMBEE(NE)  BELKER
BOREME - WEtE BRI
ENRFERTOMBEEANBAR
AEBEYE - MU BEEIAF2
e

W—IEs % IHE N AW IERIE A
HRMBHIE  BZegI A% A
FE3H ©

FAE (B I 7% & B B 55 5E (b B Rl
B

s RBATAMNTHHREXRS
7 R(E

o HNMEEHHNAFERBAIBER
Was KR - mEFHARKREA R
MEMBREE -
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EREXRAHMNEREXE
E - MAREEREERE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. B EMREE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B R EE (E)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) () RFEFTEE)
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Unlisted structured financial products JEETAEEENE®D ARBTF T ARET T
Opening balance FY R 30,000 30,000
Additions i 215,000 160,000
Settlements & (91,290) (160,662)
Gains recognised in profit or loss RIBm R E e 790 662
Closing balance FRER 154,500 30,000
Total gains for the year FAR = RTE -
including in profit or loss for BREFTARE
assets held at the end of the HARFF B R
reporting period BEMER 790 662

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. I EERMKABZRERSZ

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 7 HBE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEER—_ZE—AFR-FT—NF+_H
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2015 and 2014 =t BERNM B EERM B EED
may be categorised as follows: BREME Al 3R 3T T LA 5 48
2015 2014
—B-hfF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Financial assets MK EE
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMBEE 154,500 30,000
Loans and receivables (including cash ER K EWGRIE
and bank balances) (BRRASRIRITER) 492,089 483,920
Financial liabilities BBaE
Financial liabilities measured B EREHKAYIE
at amortised cost 183,712 177,110
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. E#t B #H %R B
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue ExgnN T - A"F=ZA=THEHMNE

by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016. HET B 1 F B TS ]RR ©

EMEEEREACEEROHERAH

—T—REFER
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IFUBRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

539.134
(108,352)

430,782

23,913
(271,170)
(45,534)

137,991
(209)

137,782

(20,144)

675,807
(152.941)
(31,098)

723,955

56,025
667,930

723,955
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